# BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE FILE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 09-03-10 04:59 PM

	)	
Order Instituting Rulemaking to Revise and	)	Rulemaking 08-11-005
Clarify Commission Regulations Relating to the	)	(Filed November 6, 2008)
Safety of Electric Utility and Communications	)	
Infrastructure Provider Facilities.	)	

## OPENING BRIEF OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) ON THE PHASE 2 WORKSHOP REPORT

JAMES M. LEHRER ROBERT F. LeMOINE

Attorneys for SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

2244 Walnut Grove Avenue Post Office Box 800 Rosemead, California 91770 Telephone: (626) 302-4182 Facsimile: (626) 302-6693

E-mail:robert.f.lemoine@sce.com

Dated: September 03, 2010

### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY OPENING BRIEF

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

<b>Section</b>	<u>Title</u> <u>Page</u>	
I. INTROD	UCTION	1
II. OVERA	RCHING PRINCIPLES AND ISSUES	1
A.	Jurisdiction Issues	3
B.	Electric Transmission Issues	4
III. PROPO	SED CONSENSUS RULES	5
A.	General Order 95, Rule 18A (Term "Nonconformance")	6
B.	General Order 95, Rule 18B (Notification Of Safety Hazards)	7
C.	General Order 95, Rule 35, Paragraphs 1-3	9
D.	General Order 95, Rule 37, Table 1, Case 14, And Footnotes (fff) – (iii)	9
E.	General Order 95, Rules 44.1, 44.2, 44.3, And 23.0 (Except Cooperation)	10
F.	General Order 165, Sections I-IV	12
IV. MULTI	PLE ALTERNATIVE PROPOSALS	12
A.	MAP No. 1: General Order 95, Rule 11	13
	1. Rule 11 Proposal By CPSD	13
	2. Rule 11 Proposal By CIP Coalition	14
B.	MAP No. 2: General Order 95, Rule 12	14
C.	MAP No. 3: General Order 95, Rule 18A (Except Term "Nonconformance")	14
	1. Rule 18A Proposal By CIP Coalition	15
	2. Rule 18A Proposal By SDG&E	17
D.	MAP No. 4: General Order 95, Rule 18C	18
E.	MAP No. 5: General Order 95, rule 31.1	19
F.	MAP No. 6: General Order 95, Rule 31.2	19

### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY OPENING BRIEF

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	<u>Title</u> P	<u>age</u>
1.	Rule 31.2 Proposal By CIP 1	20
2.	Rule 31.2 Proposal By CIP 2	21
3.	Rules 31.2 And 80.1 Part A Proposal By CPSD	21
4.	Rules 31.2 And 80.1 Part A Proposal By SDG&E	24
5.	Rules 31.2 And 80.1 Part B Proposal By CPSD (Intrusive Testing)	24
MA	P No. 7: General Order 95, Rule 35	24
1.	Rule 35, Paragraph 4 Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities	25
2.	Rule 35, Exception 3 Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities	25
MA	P No. 8: General Order 95, Rule 35, Appendix E	26
1.	Rule 35, Appendix E, Table 1 Proposal by The Joint Electric Utilities	26
2.	Rule 35, Appendix E (Guidelines) Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities	27
3.	Rule 35, Appendix E (Guidelines) Proposal By The Mussey Grade Road Alliance And The California Farm Bureau Federation	
MA	P No. 9: General Order 95, Rule 38, Footnote (aaa)	27
MA	P No. 10: General Order 95, Rule 44.4 (Cooperation)	28
1.	Rule 44.4 (Cooperation) Proposal By The CIP Coalition	29
2.	Rules 44.2 And 44.4 (Cooperation) Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities	
MA	P No. 11: General Order 95, Rule 48	31
1.	Rule 48 Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities	32
2.	Ordering Paragraph Proposal By CPSD (Regarding GO 95, Section IV)	34
MA	P No. 12: General Order 95, Rule 91.5	34
	2. 3. 4. 5. MA 1. 2. MA 1. 2. MA 1. 2. MA 1. 2.	<ol> <li>Rule 31.2 Proposal By CIP 1</li></ol>

### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY OPENING BRIEF

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

<b>Section</b>		<u>Title</u>	<u>Page</u>
M.	MAF	P No. 13: General Order 165, Section V	34
	1.	Section V Proposal By CPSD And the Mussey Grade Road Alliance	35
	2.	Ordering Paragraph Proposal By PG&E	35
N.	MAF	P No. 14: Fire Maps	35
	1.	Ordering Paragraph Proposal By CPSD And The Mussey Grade Road Alliance	35
	2.	Rule 31.2 Fire Maps Proposal By CIP 1	36
	3.	Rule 31.2 Fire Maps Proposal By CIP 2	36
V. ANCILL	ARY IS	SSUES	36
A.	MAF	P No. 15: Cost Recovery	36
	1.	Cost Recovery Proposal By DRA And TURN	37
	2.	Cost Recovery Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities, PacifiCo Sierra Pacific, And The Small LECs	
B.	Impl	ementation Issues	39
VI. CONCL	USION	[	40

#### TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

#### **California Statutes**

Title 20, California Code of Regulations, (Rules of Practice and Procedure)						
Rule 13.11						
			California Public Utilities Commission Decisions			
			Camornia Public Othities Comm	dission Decisions		
D.09-08-029	passim					
D.98-07-097	18					
California Public Utilities Commiss						
G.O. 95	passim					
	13					
	7					
	6,14,15					
	7					
Rule 22.2	15					
Rule 23.0	10,11					
Rule 31.2	19,20,24					
Rule 32.3	24					
Rule 35	passim					
Rule 37	9					
Rule 38	27					
Rule 44.2	passim					
Rule 44.3	10,11,16					
Rule 48	31,32,33					
G.O. 165	passim					

#### SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

In the following Opening Brief, SCE recommends the following actions be taken with respect to the Workshop Report for Phase 2 of this Rulemaking:

- Each of the consensus rules in Appendix A of the Workshop Report should be adopted.
- The following proposed rule changes in Appendix B (Multiple Alternative Proposals) of the Workshop Report should be **adopted**:
  - MAP No. 1 (G.O. 95, Rule 11) CPSD's proposal;
  - MAP No. 3 (G.O. 95, Rule 18A) The CIP Coalition proposal;
  - MAP No. 5 (G.O. 95, Rule 31.1) The Joint Electric Utilities proposal;
  - MAP No. 6 (G.O. 95, Rule 31.2) Either of the two CIP Coalition proposals;
  - MAP No. 7 (G.O. 95, Rule 35) the two proposals by the Joint Electric Utilities on Paragraph 4 and Exception 3;
  - MAP No. 8 (G.O. 95, Rule 35, Appendix E) the two proposals by the Joint Electric Utilities on Table 1 and the language in the Guidelines;
  - MAP No. 9 (G.O. 95, Rule 38, Footnote (aaa)) the Joint Electric Utilities proposal;
  - MAP No. 10 (G.O. 95, Rule 44.4 (Cooperation)) the Joint Electric Utilities proposal;
  - MAP No. 11 (G.O. 95, Rule 48) both of the proposals by the Joint Electric Utilities and CPSD;
  - MAP No. 13 the ordering paragraph proposed by PG&E;
  - MAP No. 15 (Cost Recovery) the proposal by the Joint Electric Utilities, the multi-jurisdictional utilities, and the Small LECs.

- The following proposed rule changes in Appendix B should be **rejected**:
  - MAP No. 1 (G.O. 95, Rule 11) The CIP Coalition proposal;
  - MAP No. 3 (G.O. 95, Rule 18A) SDG&E's proposal;
  - MAP No. 4 (G.O. 95, Rule 18C) Mussey Grade's proposal;
  - MAP No. 8 (G.O. 95, Rule 35, Appendix E) the Mussey Grade and California
     Farm Bureau proposal;
  - MAP No. 10 (G.O. 95, Rule 44.4 (Cooperation)) the CIP Coalition proposal;
  - MAP No. 12 (G.O. 95, Rule 91.5) SDG&E's proposal;
  - MAP No. 13 (G.O. 165, Section V) Mussey Grade's proposal;
  - MAP No. 14 (Fire Maps) Mussey Grade's proposal;
  - MAP No. 15 (Cost Recovery) the TURN and DRA proposal.
- SCE is **neutral** or takes **no position** on the following proposed rule changes:
  - MAP No. 2 (G.O. 95, Rule 12) CPSD's proposal;
  - MAP No. 6 (G.O. 95, Rules 31.2 and 80.1) the two inspection proposals from CPSD and SDG&E, and the intrusive testing proposal by CPSD;
  - MAP No. 14 (G.O. 95, Rule 31.2, Fire Maps) both of the CIP Coalition proposals.

# BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

	)	D 1 1: 00 11 00 7
Order Instituting Rulemaking to Revise and	)	Rulemaking 08-11-005
Clarify Commission Regulations Relating to the	)	(Filed November 6, 2008)
Safety of Electric Utility and Communications	)	
Infrastructure Provider Facilities.	)	

### OPENING BRIEF OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) ON THE PHASE 2 WORKSHOP REPORT

I.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Pursuant to the Assigned Commissioner's Ruling and Scoping Memo, the Administrative Law Judge's Ruling Granting the Motion to Extend the Schedule for Phase 2 (May 7, 2010), and Rule 13.11 of the Rules of Practice of Procedure of the California Public Utilities Commission (Commission or CPUC), Southern California Edison Company (SCE) respectfully files its Opening Brief on the Phase 2 Workshop Report submitted August 13, 2010 in this proceeding.

II.

#### **OVERARCHING PRINCIPLES AND ISSUES**

The November 5, 2009 Assigned Commissioner's Ruling and Scoping Memo for Phase 2 of this Proceeding (ACR) states that "[t]he main purpose of this rulemaking proceeding is to consider measures to reduce fire hazards associated with (1) electric transmission and distribution facilities, and (2) communication infrastructure provider (CIP) facilities in close

proximity to overhead electric power lines." Further, this proceeding was split into two phases. The first phase considered rules that could be implemented prior to the 2009 fire season, and concluded with Decision (D).09-08-029. "The purpose of Phase 2 is to address measures that require more time to consider and implement."

Throughout both phases of this proceeding, SCE has had in mind the "main purpose" of this rulemaking. Implementation costs and difficult operational changes associated with proposed rules that do not satisfy the purpose of this proceeding should not be incurred. Adopting ill-considered rules does not protect lives or property, distracts from the important task of drafting and implementing more urgently needed rules of real utility, and wastes limited financial and human resources. SCE supports most of the rule changes in the workshop report, including all the consensus rules, and favors at least one version of certain non-consensus (or MAP) rules. However, for each rule that SCE believes would require increased costs and difficult operational changes without offsetting benefits, or that otherwise does not fit within the purpose of this rulemaking, SCE explains the reasons for its opposition in this opening brief. SCE encourages the Commission to give due consideration and weight to the views of the utilities responsible for implementing and operationalizing new or modified requirements when deciding whether to adopt a particular proposed rule change.

Another overarching principle important to SCE is cost recovery for incremental costs prudently incurred as a result of the new regulations. The ACR recognizes cost as a principle and states that, "[t]he scope of Phase 2 includes regulatory procedures for recording, tracking, and recovery of costs incurred by utilities to comply with regulations adopted in this proceeding." SCE's authorized revenue requirement adopted for test year 2009 does <u>not</u> include forecast revenue to comply with new regulations that arise out of this rulemaking. Moreover, in its 2012 general rate case filing, SCE does forecast the costs it expects to incur as a result of the

-2-

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{1}{2}$  See ACR, at p.1.

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{2}{}$  See ACR, at p. 2.

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{3}{2}$  See ACR, at pp. 7-8.

Phase 1 rule changes. Cost of service ratemaking principles require that incremental costs prudently incurred to comply with new regulations through the end of SCE's current rate case cycle be recovered from ratepayers. However, the Commission has not yet adopted a mechanism to track, review, and recover recorded costs up to the date of SCE's 2012 rate case decision, as well as all costs required to comply with Phase 2 rule changes. SCE requests the Commission adopt the cost recovery proposal of the regulated electric and small telecommunications utilities (the Small-LECs), which is based upon sound ratemaking principles.

Finally, SCE would like to take this opportunity to thank our workshop facilitators, ALJs Jean Vieth and Angela Minkin. As a result of their leadership in facilitating the 25 days of workshops held from January through June in Phase 2 of this proceeding, the 35-plus parties were able to get through an aggressive agenda while reaching consensus in important areas. ALJs Vieth and Minkin were instrumental to the process – maintaining an orderly debate while challenging participants to provide adequate, substantive support for their positions. The Phase 2 workshop process was a welcome contrast to the un-facilitated and sometimes contentious process that unfolded during most of Phase 1. SCE would also like to acknowledge CPSD, DRA, TURN, the CIP Coalition, PG&E, SDG&E, Los Angeles County and the other parties who worked together with us in a collective attempt to forge improved rules for fire safety in California.

#### A. Jurisdiction Issues

For the purposes of this proceeding, SCE takes no position regarding the Commission's jurisdiction over municipal utilities with respect to G.O. 95 and G.O. 165. This issue should be decided as a matter of law taking into consideration all the applicable statutes, CPUC decisions, and case law precedent.

#### **B.** Electric Transmission Issues

In its initial proposed rule changes for Phase 1 of this proceeding, CPSD had proposed to include transmission lines within General Order (G.O.) 165.<sup>4</sup> After meeting well-founded and unanimous resistance from the utilities, CPSD ultimately withdrew this proposal from Phase 1. CPSD again proposed to treat transmission lines no differently from distribution in G.O. 165 with its Phase 2 proposed rule changes. During the workshops, CPSD, the California Independent System Operator, and the electric utilities worked together to achieve consensus regarding the extent to which transmission lines should be subject to G.O. 165 requirements. The ultimate proposed rule change is presented in Appendix A of the workshop report as the consensus rule regarding G.O. 165, Sections I-IV, and the proposal preserves the utilities' existing CAISO-approved transmission inspection and maintenance programs.<sup>5</sup> The parties reached consensus after considering the following basic principles.

- Each IOU already has a California Independent System Operator (CAISO) approved plan and audit process for transmission inspection and maintenance.
- The IOUs affirmed that they inspect and maintain their transmission lines.
- PG&E's, SCE's, and SDG&E's programs are performed and audited in accordance with the CAISO's Transmission Control Agreement.
- The same facilities of these IOU inspection and maintenance programs are also subject to certain related Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) and

See The Consumer Protection and Safety Division's Proposed Rules to Be Implemented in Time for the 2009 Fall Fire Season, filed March 9, 2009, at pp. 29-34.

<sup>5</sup> The portion of the G.O. 165 proposed rule change dealing with transmission facilities states:

<sup>&</sup>quot;Each utility shall prepare and follow procedures for conducting inspections and maintenance activities for transmission lines.

Each utility shall maintain records of inspection and maintenance activities. Commission staff shall be permitted to inspect records and procedures consistent with Public Utilities Code Section 314 (a)." (Proposed G.O. 165, Section IV.)

- the North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) requirements and associated reporting requirements.
- The IOUs believe that additional requirements from the Commission coming on top of those that already exist will do nothing to prevent fires, could lead to conflicting requirements between different jurisdictions, and will burden ratepayers by adding to utilities' cost of service.

SCE believes that the consensus rule on G.O. 165 Sections I-IV preserves these basic principles, represents compromises made by all affected parties, and should be adopted.

#### III.

#### **PROPOSED CONSENSUS RULES**

This Opening Brief of SCE will address the proposed rules as they existed at the end of the last workshop held June 14-15, 2010, and as reflected in the Workshop Report. SCE appreciates the collaboration that occurred among all the parties at each of the 25 days of workshops held during Phase 2. Consistent with the workshop protocols, SCE voted neutral or in support of each of the consensus proposed rule changes and then confirmed that vote at the next workshop session. Appendix A of the Workshop Report includes a statement of rationale for the rule as well as justifications for each proposal based upon the template provided in the ACR.

In the sections below, SCE provides its arguments supporting its vote on each consensus proposal. In many cases for both the consensus and non-consensus rules, the final proposal reflects compromises worked out after discussions among the parties. In some cases, SCE's arguments include cautions or recommendations about future interpretations of the rule changes

-5-

\_

To avoid overlapping and duplication of argument in this opening brief, SCE incorporates by reference the rationales and justifications that are contained in the Workshop Report for rules proposed by SCE, proposed by the Joint Electric Utilities, or supported by SCE. SCE further incorporates by reference comments made by SCE, PG&E, or SDG&E in opposition to rules proposed by others for rules also opposed by SCE. Finally, SCE incorporates by reference arguments made by PG&E or SDG&E for or against a particular rule as presented in the Opening Brief of each of those parties as indicated herein.

or suggestions for improvements of the language of the rules. SCE recommends that each of the consensus rules be adopted for the reasons stated in the Workshop Report and in this Opening Brief.

#### A. General Order 95, Rule 18A (Term "Nonconformance")

The parties agreed to substitute the word "nonconformance" for "violation" wherever it occurs in G.O. 95, Rule 18A (correction of safety hazards). It is important to note that additional changes are being recommended to Rule 18A to clean up its language generally. There are two such proposals presented as MAP No. 3 in Appendix B of the Workshop Report, and discussed further in Section IV of this brief below. No matter how Rule 18A is ultimately structured after considering the changes presented in the Workshop Report, all the parties reached consensus that the final rule will include the substitution of nonconformance for violation. For ease of presentation, the version of Rule 18A included in Appendix A of the Workshop Report is the current version, before considering the other changes presented in MAP No. 3.

There is an important distinction between the terms nonconformance and violation. First, nonconformance is broader than violation, and by using the term "nonconformance," Rule 18A will broaden the applicability of the rule to conditions that do not rise to the level of a safety hazard or other General Order discrepancies that have been termed "violations" by Commission staff and in Commission decisions. Second, the term violation in the context of Rule 18A may imply that any corrective action taken by a utility following its maintenance plan marks a violation of a General Order that could lead to penalties or liability. This is simply not the case. It makes sense to encourage utilities to take corrective action whenever the utilities deem it necessary – even when those corrective actions are not prompted by actual violations of a General Order. SCE encourages the Commission to adopt this consensus change and to replace

the term "violation" with "nonconformance" wherever it appears in whichever version of Rule 18A is ultimately adopted.<sup>7</sup>

#### B. General Order 95, Rule 18B (Notification Of Safety Hazards)

Rule 18B (Notification of Safety Hazards) is a new rule recently adopted in the Phase 1 Decision (D.09-08-029). However, the rule as adopted was difficult to interpret and could not be put into practice with any certainty that the operational changes actually met all the requirements of the rule. The rule required significant revisions for clarity, and to ensure that the final version could be executed by the electric utilities and communications companies consistently with good quality.

The consensus changes to Rule 18B provide the clarity required to make the operational changes necessary to meet its requirements. Adoption of the consensus changes will make it clear that utility inspectors are to apply the rule's requirements during inspections consistent with the utility's or company's adopted inspection and maintenance plan. This rule will not apply during other times, such as emergency conditions or trouble calls, when the focus is properly on restoring service.

The changes also now recognize the actual conditions faced by joint pole owners and tenants in identifying entities attached to specific poles. Utilities have knowledge of the companies that share joint ownership on its poles, and they also know who its tenants are in the spaces it owns on the poles. Utilities do not always know, however, who the tenants are of other joint pole owners. The clarified rule now recognizes this reality of joint pole ownership, and permits the inspecting company to notify the pole owners when it cannot identify the particular entity whose facilities are causing the safety hazard. It is then the responsibility of the particular pole owner to notify that entity of the condition.

-7-

This change is also consistent with the terminology found in GO 95 Rule 12.6 (Third Party Nonconformance) and Rule 35 (Vegetation Management) – Exception #3.

SCE disfavors placing time frames (and other operational requirements) such as those found in this Rule 18B into General Order 95. Instead, SCE favors a "programmatic approach" to regulation within G.O. 95. Specifically, G.O. 95 should set forth the standards to be met by regulated utilities. The utilities should be required to develop processes or a program to meet those standards, and Commission staff should audit the utilities to ensure their programs are designed to meet the standards set by the rule and that each utility is following its program. This approach allows each utility to take into consideration the unique aspects of its service territory and operations when developing compliance programs. It also permits utilities to refine their programs over time and incorporate new technology and efficiencies rather than be hampered by a "one-size-fits-all" set of operational requirements that may be outdated by the time they are adopted.

In the case of this consensus Rule 18B, SCE would also support a rule that states:

If a company, while performing inspections of its facilities, discovers a safety hazard(s) on or near a communications facility or electric facility involving another company, the inspecting company shall notify the other company and/or facility owner of such safety hazard(s).

NOTE: To the extent the inspecting company cannot determine the facility owner/operator, it shall contact the pole owner(s), who shall be responsible for notifying the company owning/operating the facility with the safety hazard(s). Each pole owner must be able to determine all other pole owners on poles it owns. Each pole owner must be able to determine all authorized entities that attach equipment on its portion of a pole.

This version provides the standard – *companies must notify others of safety hazards* identified while performing inspections – and guidance – pole owners are expected to be able to determine the identity of their tenants – while permitting each company to develop a compliance program of its own to meet the standard. Regulated companies and Commission staff would then be expected to cooperate to ensure that the companies' programs are designed and implemented to meet the requirements of the rule. This approach fosters mutual respect between

companies and the regulators and should be favored over prescriptive rules that mandate operational requirements that are difficult to change when new circumstances arise.

The changes to Rule 18B were adopted as consensus changes by the workshop participants, including SCE. The changes include compromises made in order to achieve consensus. Although SCE believes a rule without operational requirements is preferable, SCE continues to support the consensus proposal.

#### C. General Order 95, Rule 35, Paragraphs 1-3

Consensus was reached on proposed changes to the first three paragraphs of G.O. 95, Rule 35 (vegetation management). These changes accomplish three important tasks: (i) it makes clear that the vegetation clearance requirements apply to all facilities in California, including those on State or local agency land; (ii) it clarifies previously ambiguous language requiring that electric and telecommunications companies must remove the dead, rotten, or diseased portions of trees that overhang or lean toward and may fall into a span of electric or telecommunications lines they know about, but that healthy trees that overhang or lean toward conductors are permissible; and (iii) it clarifies previously ambiguous language defining "strain" on a conductor.

SCE affirms its support of the consensus revisions made during the workshop process to these first three paragraphs of Rule 35. Although other proposals related to Rule 35 did not reach consensus, SCE believes the amendments made to these three paragraphs are not dependant on the non-consensus proposals and clarify the vegetation management requirements for electric and communication companies and should aid in future interpretations of this rule.

#### D. General Order 95, Rule 37, Table 1, Case 14, And Footnotes (fff) – (iii)

The proposed consensus changes to Rule 37 (minimum line clearances), Case 14, and Footnotes (fff) – (jjj) retain the footnotes adopted by the Phase 1 Decision, removing the "interim" label. These changes also correct a typo in Case 14.

SCE does not object to retaining Case 14 and associated footnotes "fff", "ggg", "iii" and "jjj" that were adopted as "interim" requirements in the Phase 1 Decision. As part of the

consensus vote, SCE also agreed to retain footnote "hhh." However, SCE has serious concerns regarding footnote "hhh" (and similar references in G.O. 95 and G.O. 165) to Cal-FIRE's Fire and Resource Assessment Program (FRAP) Fire Threat Map. SCE does not agree that references to the FRAP Map should be retained permanently for Southern California. Because no consensus was reached on replacing the FRAP Map with a more suitable alternative, SCE agreed to retain footnote "hhh" for now, but is doing so without prejudice to a request in a subsequent proceeding to replace or modify footnote "hhh" and similar references adopted in Phase 1.

Shortly after the initiation of the Phase 2 workshops, three Work Groups were formed. The "Mapping" Work Group was tasked with reviewing existing interim rules associated with the FRAP Map and also determining the applicability of the maps to parts of the state not previously defined as "Southern California." Because the Phase 1 decision included an Interim Ordering Paragraph requiring the patrol of communication facilities in designated Extreme and Very High Fire Threat Zones in Southern California using the FRAP Map, the communication company representatives requested that this Working Group initially focus on other parts of California, so as not to interrupt or complicate the implementation of the ordered patrol inspections. SCE agreed with the understanding that whether use of the FRAP Map was prudent or necessary on a long term or permanent basis would be vetted during the workshops. However, such a vetting did not occur during the workshops.

SCE respectfully requests that the Commission affirm in the Phase 2 Decision that the matter of utilizing Cal-FIRE's FRAP Map in Southern California as referenced in G.O. 95 and G.O. 165 is subject to change in a future proceeding.

#### E. General Order 95, Rules 44.1, 44.2, 44.3, And 23.0 (Except Cooperation)

The parties agreed to several important consensus changes to the pole loading rules in Section IV of G.O. 95 (pole loading). These clarify that both electric and telecommunications companies are required to perform pole load calculations that consider both structural loading

and mechanical strength, whenever facilities are added that increase the vertical, transverse, or longitudinal loading on a structure. The changes also clarify that the safety factors to be used are in Rule 44.3 (as opposed to the prior, ambiguous reference to "Section IV"). The record retention requirement for pole load calculations is set at five years. Finally, the change to Rule 23.0 clarifies that changes in grade of construction or class of circuits is considered "reconstruction."

SCE affirms it support of the consensus revisions made during the workshop process. SCE believes the consensus revisions improve the version of Rule 44.2 adopted in Phase 1.

On the topic of "cooperation" (identified as "reserved" in Appendix A to the Workshop Report), which is discussed at length in our comments to MAP proposals in Section IV of this brief below, SCE observes that the consensus version of Rule 44.2 already includes a "cooperation" requirement. Consistent with SCE's view on taking a "programmatic approach" to G.O. 95 rules, SCE believes that the existing cooperation requirement in Rule 44.2 is sufficient to ensure that the data necessary to perform pole loading calculations is shared among the companies sharing space on joint poles.

Moreover, the ACR defined the cooperation issue narrowly as "sharing information in coordination with the Northern California Joint Pole Committee and the Southern California Joint Pole Committee." We note that the CIP Coalition's original PRC and their current PRC included as MAP No. 10 in Appendix B of the Workshop Report extends well beyond the ACR, and fails entirely to recognize the importance of coordinating with the Joint Pole Committees. In addition, SCE is concerned that communication companies will use the new rule to reopen and renegotiate existing pole attachment agreements with the electric utilities.

-

-11-

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{8}{}$  ACR at p. 6.

#### F. General Order 165, Sections I-IV

SCE affirms its support for the consensus changes proposed for G.O. 165, Section IV for the reasons stated in the Workshop Report. The majority of these changes codify negotiations that predated this proceeding, and will vastly improve G.O. 165 by streamlining many of its requirements. The consensus proposal also includes a new subpart IV – Transmission Facilities, which is discussed above in Section II.B of this brief.

#### IV.

#### **MULTIPLE ALTERNATIVE PROPOSALS**

Despite the progress made during the workshops, the Workshop Report presents fifteen Multiple Alternative Proposals (MAPs) for consideration and decision. The Commission could decide to adopt one of the proposals in each set, adopt a modified version of one of the proposals, or decide not to adopt any of the proposals in a particular set. These MAPs were established according to the workshop protocols, which permitted parties to submit alternatives to the initial proposal even if the party did not offer the alternative in its initial pleadings. A proposed rule change became a MAP only after often lengthy debate determined that consensus would not be reached.

In the Workshop Report, SCE indicated which of the choices is the best fit (or whether no version of the rule should be adopted) considering the competing interests of new regulations aimed at preventing wildfires and burdening ratepayers with new, costly requirements. In this Opening Brief below, SCE continues to advocate for its positions as described in the Workshop Report, many of which include compromises from earlier positions after having considered the arguments of other parties, including CPSD. We encourage the Commission to adopt the positions advocated by SCE regarding the proposals below after considering all the costs, operational changes, and purported benefits of each set of MAP proposals.

#### A. MAP No. 1: General Order 95, Rule 11

Two alternatives are presented in the Workshop Report to modify G.O. 95, Rule 11 (Purpose of Rules) – one from CPSD and one from the CIP Coalition. SCE supports the CPSD proposal and opposes the CIP Coalition proposal.

#### 1. Rule 11 Proposal By CPSD

In addition to construction requirements, CPSD's proposal adds "design" and "maintenance" to this prefatory rule, clarifying that lines must be designed and maintained (as well as constructed) in accordance with the applicable G.O. 95 requirements. The CPSD proposal also deletes the modifier "electrical" from before "line" in the rule to remove a possible ambiguity in this rule regarding whether communications lines were exempt from all of G.O. 95.

SCE supports deleting the term "electrical" to make it clear that G.O. 95 also applies to communications lines (which no party disputes). SCE is concerned, however, with the addition of "design" and "maintenance" to this rule. Technology changes quickly, and the more details and processes that are inserted into G.O. 95, the less flexibility a utility has to tailor its activities to fit its business needs. SCE would prefer to keep G.O. 95 principally focused on construction requirements, and is concerned that broadening the scope of the rules to include requirements for the "design" and "maintenance" of lines through such a seemingly innocuous reference will actually create more confusion than clarify, and opens other portions of G.O. 95 to the insertion of inappropriate procedural and operational requirements that are often untested and very difficult to change. This General Order should provide high level requirements that the utilities can build upon to fit their operational and business needs, not prescriptive details.

#### 2. Rule 11 Proposal By CIP Coalition

Like the CPSD proposal, the CIP Coalition proposal also would add "design" and "maintenance" to this rule, which describes the purpose of G.O. 95. The CIP Coalition proposal, however, retains the confusing "electrical" modifier.

G.O. 95 clearly applies to both electric and communication overhead lines. Although historically the term "electrical lines" included communication lines, a new person reading the rule today – especially with all the changes in technology and the fact that there is a Section VIII in G.O. 95 that specifically refers to communication lines – it is possible that a reader might interpret the retention of the word "electrical" as intending to exclude communications lines from the Rule. The CPSD deletion clarifies the rule, and that version should be adopted.

#### B. MAP No. 2: General Order 95, Rule 12

For the reasons stated above in this brief under "Jurisdictional Issues," SCE takes no position on this proposed change to Rule 12, which would clarify that G.O. 95 applies to the facilities of publicly-owned utilities.

#### C. MAP No. 3: General Order 95, Rule 18A (Except Term "Nonconformance")

Two MAP alternatives have been offered proposing changes to G.O. 95, Rule 18A (correction of safety hazards). During the workshops, SCE supported the alternative offered by the CIP Coalition and opposed the alternative offered by SDG&E. SCE affirms these positions. Nonetheless, SCE remains concerned about the prescriptive nature of both of these proposals. Consistent with its preference for rules that set basic standards and permit regulated companies to develop programs, practices, and procedures to comply with those standards, SCE offers below an approach to addressing the issues in Rule 18A in a manner more appropriate for inclusion as a rule in G.O. 95.

#### 1. Rule 18A Proposal By CIP Coalition

In its Work Report Comments, SCE joined in PG&E's comments supporting the CIP Coalition's proposed revisions to Rule 18A. SCE supported this proposal in an attempt to achieve consensus. However, SCE would point out that G.O. 95 already has a "maintenance" rule and a definition that can be edited to achieve the intent of Rule 18A using a programmatic approach, while integrating the concepts into existing Rules 12.2 and 22.2.

Prior to the Commission's adoption of Rule 18A in Phase 1 of this proceeding, electric and communication companies (subject to G.O. 95) were already required to maintain their facilities. SCE favors integrating the concepts contained in Rule 18A into existing G.O. 95 rules, creating flexibility while maintaining high standards.

SCE recommends the Commission order:9

- Rule 12.2 be revised to include a requirement for electric and communication companies to establish an auditable maintenance program;
- The definition of Safety Hazard in revised Rule 18 be added to Section II as new Rule 23.3;
- With minor edits, Part A of revised Rule 18 be included in G.O. 95 as new Appendix "J"; and
- The definition of "Extreme and Very High Fire Threat Zones" in revised Rule 18 be added as a footnote to new Appendix "J";

As shown below (SCE's proposed edits are underlined):

\_

SCE's intent in offering alternatives to the Workshop Report version of proposed rule changes here and elsewhere in this brief is, with the benefit of hindsight, to make suggestions to the Commission that remove prescriptive operational requirements while preserving the substance of the proposals and better aligning the text with the existing structure of G.O. 95. SCE also would like to avoid or minimize the need for future proceedings to clean up inconsistencies and other textual problems in G.O. 95 as a result of the changes adopted in this proceeding. SCE hopes other parties (including CPSD) voice their support for these changes in their Reply Briefs.

#### 12.2 Maintenance of Lines

All lines and portions of lines shall be maintained in such condition as to provide safety factors not less than those specified in Rule 44.3. Lines and portions of lines constructed or reconstructed on or after the effective date of this Order shall be kept in conformity with the requirements of this Order.

<u>Electric supply and communication companies shall establish an auditable maintenance program</u> for their facilities and lines.

The restoration of clearance originally established prior to the effective date of this Order, where the original clearance has been reduced by additional sagging or other causes, is not considered to be reconstruction and the reestablished clearance shall conform to the requirements of the rules in effect at the time the original clearance was established. The changing of clearance for any other purpose is reconstruction and clearances so changed shall comply with the rules of this Order applicable to reconstruction.

**23.3 Safety Hazard** means a condition that poses a significant threat to human life or property.

#### **Appendix J: Auditable Maintenance Programs**

- (1) Rule 12.2 requires electric supply and communication companies to establish an auditable maintenance program for their facilities and lines.
- (2) Programs must include a timeline for corrective actions to be taken following the identification of a Safety Hazard or nonconformances with General Order 95 on the company's facilities.
- (3) Programs must prioritize corrective actions consistent with the priority levels set forth below and based on the following factors, as appropriate:
  - Safety and reliability as specified in the priority levels below;
  - Type of facility or equipment;
  - Location, including whether the Safety Hazard or nonconformance is located in an Extreme or Very High Fire Threat Zone in Southern California;
  - Accessibility;
  - Climate;
  - <u>Direct or potential impact on operations, customers, electrical company workers, communications workers, and the general public;</u>

Note: "Extreme and Very High Fire Threat Zones" are defined in the Commission Decision 09-08-029. "Southern California" is defined as the following: Santa Barbara, Ventura, San Bernardino, Riverside, Los Angeles, Orange, and San Diego.

There should be at least 3 priority levels.

#### (i) Level 1:

• Immediate safety and/or reliability risk with high probability for significant impact.

• Take action immediately, either by fully repairing the condition, or by temporarily repairing and reclassifying the condition to a lower priority.

#### (ii) Level 2:

- Variable (non-immediate high to low) safety and/or reliability risk.
- Take action to correct within specified time period (fully repair, or by temporarily repairing and reclassifying the condition to a lower priority).
- <u>Time period for correction to be determined at the time of identification by a qualified company representative, but not to exceed 59 months.</u><sup>10</sup>

#### (iii) Level 3:

- Acceptable safety and/or reliability risk.
- Take action (re-inspect, re-evaluate, or repair) as appropriate.

Correction times may be extended under reasonable circumstances, such as: Third party refusal; Customer issue; No access; Permits required; System emergencies (e.g. fires, severe weather conditions).

- (4) Upon completion of the corrective action, the company's records shall show, with sufficient detail, the nature of the work, the date, and the identity of persons performing the work. These records shall be preserved by the company for at least five years and shall be made available to Commission staff upon 30 days notice.
- (5) Companies that have existing General Order 165 auditable inspection and maintenance programs shall continue to follow their General Order 165 programs.

#### 2. Rule 18A Proposal By SDG&E

In its Workshop Report Comments, SCE joined in PG&E's comments opposing SDG&E's proposed revisions to Rule 18A. Essentially, SDG&E would like all communication companies operating within its service territory to follow SDG&E's own internal standards for corrective action. SCE is sympathetic to SDG&E's concerns regarding the timely correction of identified G.O. 95 nonconformances that affect worker and/or public safety by other companies sharing its system. However, consistent with SCE's belief that G.O. 95 rules should set standards and not dictate operational requirements, SDG&E's proposal is simply not appropriate for inclusion in G.O. 95.

\_\_

Although SCE is generally opposed to placing operational timeframes in G.O. 95 rules, this particular requirement to record a date for corrective action not to exceed 59 months from the time of identification is acceptable to SCE because it is sufficiently flexible to permit the utility to design a program that meets this timeframe while considering all the factors unique to the particular utility's operations and service territory.

Moreover, prescriptive time frames such as those in SDG&E's proposal are not appropriate for a rule of statewide application. Instead, SCE recommends the programmatic approach to reforming Rule 18A outlined in subsection C.1. above.

#### D. MAP No. 4: General Order 95, Rule 18C

Mussey Grade's proposal for a new Rule 18C would place an ambiguous and burdensome new requirement on electric utilities to develop contingency plans that include the analysis of the risk from equipment that currently meets the requirements set by G.O. 95. There is a good reason why Mussey Grade's proposal was supported by the "yes" votes of only two other parties and was opposed by every party to this proceeding that is actually regulated by the CPUC.

First, proposed Rule 18C does not belong in G.O. 95, which establishes uniform requirements related to overhead line construction. G.O. 95 does not and should not address business issues such as "contingency planning" with ambiguous, impossible to meet requirements. Second, electric utilities currently develop contingency plans for all types of events, not just wild land fires. Examples are systems failures, overload conditions, and major rain or heat storms. Finally, pursuant to D.98-07-097, General Order 166 already requires that utilities adopt rules that govern planning for responses to major emergencies, disasters, and power outages.

The proposed rule is also severely flawed because it assumes the utilities (or anyone else) can predict wildfires in areas containing facilities that conform to G.O. 95. Thus, the proposed rule is impossible to operationalize. Rules and regulations must not be designed to ensure failure, yet this one clearly is. In the first instance, electric utilities will have to decide what "measures" are necessary "to prevent ignitions of wildland fires by equipment that meets G.O. 95... requirements." Inevitably, however, some interests groups will insist the utilities are not doing enough while others will argue that the utilities are spending too much ratepayer money

"planning" when the money could be put to better use elsewhere – such as replacing obsolete or worn equipment.

This proposal is ill-conceived and should not be adopted. Instead, SCE encourages Mussey Grade to support the full funding of each utility's vegetation management program (in conformance with the Phase 1 decision) and infrastructure replacement program.

#### E. MAP No. 5: General Order 95, rule 31.1

This proposal by the Joint Electric Utilities to clarify the applicability of Rule 31.1 was the most widely supported rule that did not reach consensus. In fact, it is the only rule to receive an initial consensus vote but then be rejected on confirmation – in this case with only CPSD dissenting.

The changes proposed to Rule 31.1 would clarify that utilities must meet the standards set in G.O. 95, or, where no G.O. 95 standard exists, utilities must follow accepted good practice. It is important that utilities understand, in advance, what the regulatory requirements are so that they have an opportunity to meet those standards. The changes fix ambiguities in the rule and should be adopted.

To avoid duplication of arguments in these opening briefs, SCE incorporates by reference the rationale and justifications for this rule contained in the Workshop Report and PG&E's arguments for adoption of this rule contained in its Opening Brief.

#### F. MAP No. 6: General Order 95, Rule 31.2

In its Workshop Report Comments, SCE noted that it supported both of the CIP Coalition rule change proposals, and voted neutral on the CPSD and SDG&E proposals. SCE continues to believe both of the CIP Coalition proposals are better aligned with the intent and goals of this proceeding as described in the ACR, while the CPSD and SDG&E proposals, instead, seek to expand the scope of the inspections to locations not considered high fire hazard areas without providing adequate justification of need, without a showing of current nonconformances by the

affected companies, and without a showing of the expected short-term or long-term benefits from these proposed expansive rules and prescriptive time frames.

#### 1. Rule 31.2 Proposal By CIP 1

Of the four rule changes being considered, SCE finds this proposal (CIP 1) to be the most reasonable in terms of its patrol and inspection timeframes. However, SCE does not agree with the addition of prescribed timeframes and embedded definitions specific to "communication inspections" to Rule 31.2. It remains our view that such requirements are best suited for a separate General Order, or in the alternative, the Commission should strongly consider adopting the content of Proposal CIP 1 in Section VIII of G.O. 95 as denoted below.

Further, the definition of "Specified Fire Areas" in this proposal seeks to continue the use of Cal-FIRE FRAP Maps in Southern California and adopt new maps developed by REAX Engineering for use in Northern California. Again, SCE respectfully requests the Commission affirm in the Phase 2 Decision that the matter of utilizing Cal-FIRE FRAP Maps in Southern California (as referenced in G.O. 95 and G.O. 165) is subject to consideration in a future proceeding. Further, it remains our hope that a consolidated map for communication company inspections for use in both Northern and Southern California might still be developed.

#### **SCE Alternate (CIP 1):** Rule 31.2 – Inspection of Lines

Lines shall be inspected frequently and thoroughly for the purpose of insuring that they are in good condition so as to conform with these rules. Lines temporarily out of service shall be inspected and maintained in such condition as not to create a hazard.

#### A. Communication Lines (See Rule 80.1.)

B. Electric Lines shall be inspected in compliance with the requirements of General Order 165.

SCE Alternate (CIP 1): Rule 80.1 Inspection Requirements for Communication Lines

Communication lines shall be inspected in Specified Fire areas, as follows:

- A. Patrols shall be performed not less often than once every three (3) years on overhead communications lines installed on joint use poles with electric distribution or transmission facilities, as well as on communication lines one span away.
  - 1. Patrol means a simple visual inspection of communications equipment and structures that is designed to identify obvious structural problems and hazards. Patrols may be carried out in the course of other company business.
- B. Detail Inspections shall be performed not less often than once every nine (9) years on overhead communications lines installed on joint use poles with electric distribution or transmission facilities, as well as on communication lines one span away.
  - 1. Detail Inspection means a careful visual inspection of communications equipment and structures using inspection tools such as binoculars and measuring devices, as appropriate. Detail Inspections may be carried out in the course of other company business.
- C. For all Patrols and Detail Inspections, records shall specify the facility or equipment inspected; the name of the inspector; the date of the inspection; and any problems (or items requiring corrective action) identified during each inspection, as well as the scheduled date of corrective action.
- D. Records of Patrols and Detail Inspections shall be made available to Commission staff upon 30 days notice.

#### 2. Rule 31.2 Proposal By CIP 2

SCE also voted to support the CIP 2 proposed change to Rule 31.2, and we continue to support the proposal. However, consistent with our comments above, as a general matter, we do not agree with the addition of prescribed timeframes and embedded definitions specific to "communication inspections" to Rule 31.2. As an alternative, SCE supports the language it offers in subsection F.1. above regarding the CIP 1 proposal for Rule 31.2.

#### 3. Rules 31.2 And 80.1 Part A Proposal By CPSD

SCE voted neutral on CPSD's communication inspections proposal for Rules 31.2 and 80.1 Part A. As noted above, SCE favors the two CIP proposals over CPSD's proposal; however, if the Commission instead adopts CPSD's version, the content of this proposal should be placed in a separate General Order, and not within G.O. 95.

SCE notes that CPSD's proposal very closely resembles G.O. 165. As an alternative to inclusion in G.O. 95, the Commission, to the extent it agrees with the CPSD version, should strongly consider publishing this proposal, with minor revisions (strikeout and double-underlined), as a new General Order No. 170:11

#### **SCE Alternate (CPSD):** Rule 31.2 – Inspection of Lines

Lines shall be inspected frequently and thoroughly for the purpose of insuring that they are in good condition so as to conform with these rules. Lines temporarily out of service shall be inspected and maintained in such condition as not to create a hazard.

- A. Communication Lines (See General Order 170)
- B. Electric Lines shall be inspected in compliance with the requirements of General Order 165.

#### SCE Alternate (CPSD): GO170 – Inspection Cycles for Communication Lines

- A. <u>Each company shall prepare</u>, follow and modify as necessary procedures for conducting inspections for all Communication Lines. The procedures at a minimum shall contain the following:
  - Proximity to electric facilities
  - Terrain
  - Accessibility
  - Location

In no case may the period between inspections (measured in years) for Communication Lines located on Joint Use Poles (See GO 95 Rule 21.8) that contain Supply Circuits (See GO 95 Rule 20.6-D), as well as those Communication Lines attached to a pole that are within three spans of Joint Use Poles that contain Supply Circuits, exceed the time specified in the below Table below.

Patrol		Detailed
Urban	Rural	Detailed
1	21	$10^{1}$

In addition, CPSD's proposal also includes a definition of "Specified Fire Areas" that seeks to continue the use of Cal-FIRE FRAP Maps in Southern California. Again, SCE respectfully requests the Commission affirm in the Phase 2 Decision that the matter of utilizing Cal-FIRE's FRAP Map in Southern California (as referenced in GO 95 and GO 165) is subject to consideration in a future proceeding.

(1) Patrol inspections in rural areas shall be increased to once per year, and detailed inspections shall be increased to once every five years, in Extreme and Very High Fire Threat Zones in the following counties: Santa Barbara, Ventura, Los Angeles, San Bernardino, Orange, Riverside, and San Diego. Extreme and Very High Fire Threat Zones are defined by California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection's Fire and Resource Assessment Program (FRAP) Fire Threat Map. The FRAP Fire Threat Map is to be used to establish approximate boundaries and Utilities should use their own expertise and judgment to determine if local conditions require them to adjust the boundaries of the map.

- Methodology to ensure that all lines are subjected to:
  - <u>Detailed Inspections</u>

Note: For the purpose of this rule Detailed Inspection shall be defined as a careful visual inspection of Communication facilities and structures using inspection tools such as binoculars and measuring devices, as appropriate.

• Patrol Inspections

Note: For the purpose of this rule Patrol Inspection shall be defined as a simple visual inspection, of applicable communications facilities equipment and structures that is designed to identify obvious structural problems and hazards. Patrol inspections may be carried out in the course of other company business.

• <u>Procedures describing ratings of identified conditions-specifying what problems</u> shall be identified

#### B. Procedures for wood pole intrusive inspections

• Wood poles supporting only Communication Lines or equipment, that are:

Located in Extreme or Very High Fire Threat Zones in Southern California and inter-set between joint use poles supporting Supply Lines,

Or,

Located in Extreme or Very High Fire Threat Zones in Southern California and extend up to three spans from a joint use pole supporting Supply Lines,

Or,

<u>Located in areas outside Extreme or Very High Fire Threat Zones in Southern</u> California and extend one span from a joint use pole supporting Supply Lines,

shall be intrusively inspected in accordance with the schedule established in General Order 165 for wood poles that support Supply Lines.

Note: For the purpose of this rule Wood pole intrusive inspection shall be defined as an inspection involving movement of soil, and/or using more sophisticated diagnostic tools beyond visual inspections or instrument reading.

<u>Each company shall maintain records of inspections. Commission staff shall be permitted to inspect records and procedures consistent with Public Utilities Code Section 314 (a).</u>

#### 4. Rules 31.2 And 80.1 Part A Proposal By SDG&E

SCE voted neutral on SDG&E's proposal for communication inspections in Rules 32.3 and 80.1. As noted above, SCE favors the two CIP proposals over SDG&E's proposal; however, if the Commission adopts SDG&E's version, the language should be placed in a separate General Order, and not within G.O. 95, as suggested above in subsection F.3. (discussion of CPSD's proposal).

#### 5. Rules 31.2 And 80.1 Part B Proposal By CPSD (Intrusive Testing)

SCE voted neutral on this intrusive inspection proposal by CPSD because SCE believes that intrusive inspections of wood communications poles near electric lines could prevent pole failures from affecting electric facilities. As stated in our comments to this proposal in the workshop report, SCE would have supported a narrower rule that is more consistent with the scope of this proceeding, and which limited wood pole intrusive inspections to high fire hazard areas. See comments to CPSD's Rule 80.1 Part A and proposed alternate G.O. 170 in subpart F.3. above.

#### G. MAP No. 7: General Order 95, Rule 35

The Joint Electric Utilities proposed two additions to Rule 35 designed to counter customer refusals of vegetation management work to prevent vegetation contact with energized equipment. Both faced very little opposition during the workshops and should be adopted.

#### 1. Rule 35, Paragraph 4 Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities

New Paragraph 4 to Rule 35, proposed by the Joint Electric Utilities, would allow utilities to terminate power to customers at any location where they receive service who refuse to allow vegetation inspections, or who create an imminent threat of a clearance violation. SCE voted in favor of the proposal during the workshops. SCE supports the right to terminate service at the location where access is restricted, and is neutral on authority to terminate service at other locations where the property owner receives service. To avoid duplication of arguments in these opening briefs, SCE incorporates by reference the rationale and justifications for this rule contained in the Workshop Report and PG&E's arguments for adoption of this rule contained in its Opening Brief.

SCE intends to use this rule as a tool to obtain permission from objecting property owners to conduct necessary vegetation management activities around its energized facilities under egregious circumstances where the threat to public safety is real. SCE will use all available means to obtain permission from a property owner prior to terminating service. Furthermore, SCE will rely first on its authority under Tariff Rule 11 to terminate service for unsafe conditions. Finally, SCE hopes that the mere possibility of termination will be sufficient to convince property owners to permit access for vegetation management activities. As a matter of policy, SCE does not intend to turn off service at a location different from the location causing the unsafe condition, but may choose to terminate service at the location of the obstructed access if the threat of harm from the condition appears imminent and all other options for correcting the condition have been exhausted.

#### 2. Rule 35, Exception 3 Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities

New Exception 3 to Rule 35 would make clear to property owners who refuse access for vegetation management that they will be held responsible for the consequences of their actions if their refusal results in a contact between vegetation and energized

equipment. The Joint Electric Utilities all support this proposal, which received very little opposition. To avoid duplication of arguments in these opening briefs, SCE incorporates by reference the rationale and justifications for this rule contained in the Workshop Report and SDG&E's arguments for adoption of this rule contained in its Opening Brief. SCE urges the Commission to adopt this important tool for preventing vegetation-caused fires from igniting due to a lack of access to property.

#### H. MAP No. 8: General Order 95, Rule 35, Appendix E

Three proposals were offered during the workshops addressing G.O. 95, Rule 35, Appendix E (Guidelines). The two proposals made by the Joint Electric Utilities were widely supported, faced little opposition, and should be adopted. In contrast, the third proposal, made by Mussey Grade and the Farm Bureau, garnered little support, was opposed by virtually every electric utility in California, and should be rejected.

#### 1. Rule 35, Appendix E, Table 1 Proposal by The Joint Electric Utilities

This Joint Electric Utility proposal would increase the guidelines for minimum time-of-trim vegetation-to-conductor radial clearances for Extreme and Very High Fire Threat Zones in Southern California from 6.5 feet to 10 feet for conductors operating at 2,400 volts or more but less than 72,000 volts, and from 10 feet to 15 feet for conductor of a line operating at 72,000 volts or more but less than 110,000 volts. The Joint Electric Utilities all support this proposal, which received very little opposition. To avoid duplication of arguments in these opening briefs, SCE incorporates by reference the rationale and justifications for this rule contained in the Workshop Report and SDG&E's arguments for adoption of this rule contained in its Opening Brief. SCE continues to support the proposal, which should be adopted.

#### 2. Rule 35, Appendix E (Guidelines) Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities

This Joint Electric Utility proposal would clarify language in Appendix E (Guidelines) to Rule 35 by adding descriptive factors that will be taken into consideration when determining the appropriate level of additional clearances that need to be obtained at the time of trim. The Joint Electric Utilities all support this proposal, which received very little opposition. To avoid duplication of arguments in these opening briefs, SCE incorporates by reference the rationale and justifications for this rule contained in the Workshop Report and SDG&E's arguments for adoption of this rule contained in its Opening Brief. SCE continues to support the proposal, which should be adopted.

# 3. Rule 35, Appendix E (Guidelines) Proposal By The Mussey Grade Road Alliance And The California Farm Bureau Federation

This alternative to the Joint Electric Utilities' proposal by Mussey Grade and the Farm Bureau would add two phrases to the list of factors used to determine the appropriate clearances at time of trim. The additions are counterproductive and should be rejected. The Joint Electric Utilities all oppose this proposal. To avoid duplication of arguments in these opening briefs, SCE incorporates by reference the arguments against this rule contained in the Workshop Report and SDG&E's arguments contained in its Opening Brief. SCE continues to oppose this proposal, which should be rejected.

#### I. MAP No. 9: General Order 95, Rule 38, Footnote (aaa)

New Footnote (aaa) to G.O. 95, Rule 38 is advisory only. It states in its entirety: "The vertical separation requirement between conductors in the adjoining mid-span may or may not require increased vertical separation at the pole based on the sag characteristics of the conductors." The footnote is designed to remind companies constructing facilities on an existing structure to consider all the factors that contribute to the sag of the conductors that are already there. Specifically, companies are reminded that one cannot assume that the existing conductors

will always sag by the same amount (within 10%) as observed on the day of construction. In consideration of the fact that conductors may sag by a larger amount under different conditions (reducing the amount of clearance between the old conductors and newly constructed lines), the company installing the new lines may need to increase the separation distance at the attachment point on the pole.

This basic engineering principle is non-controversial, and SCE is puzzled by the opposition to the proposal by the CIP coalition (CPSD voted neutral). This proposal is a reminder only – it does not contravene any other clearance requirement or construction standard in G.O. 95. This proposal complements all those other rules cited by the CIP coalition in Appendix B, footnote 32 of the Workshop Report. Under existing rules, conductors must be designed to remain a specified distance apart to reduce the possibility of conductors contacting each other, which can cause outages and sparks. A 10% allowance in that clearance is made for temperature and loading. It is prudent to remind constructing companies to consider all the factors that can increase sag when designing the height of attachment on the pole.

#### J. MAP No. 10: General Order 95, Rule 44.4 (Cooperation)

Of all the proposals debated during the workshop process, the one describing how electric utilities and communications companies will cooperate with each other to facilitate timely and accurate pole loading calculations on joint use poles garnered the most discussion and came closest to resolution without reaching consensus. The final language of both proposals is nearly identical. SCE is genuinely disappointed that, after much compromise from all parties, the gap ultimately could not be bridged.

SCE firmly believes that the existing language in Rule 44.2 is sufficient to ensure cooperation by utilities performing pole load calculations on joint use poles and to permit enforcement of that requirement by Commission staff. Rule 44.2 as adopted in the Phase 1 Decision currently states: "All other utilities on the subject pole shall cooperate with the utility performing the load calculations described above including, but not limited to, providing

intrusive pole loading data and other data necessary to perform those calculations." This language embodies the "programmatic" approach that SCE believes is consistent with the overall structure of G.O. 95, and is more efficient, cost-effective, and flexible than permanently enshrining prescriptive requirements into G.O. 95.

The ACR itself did not contemplate a far ranging "cooperation" rule in Section IV of G.O. 95. Instead, the scope of Phase 2 included only two issues touching on the cooperation issue: (i) "[a]rea specific rules for sharing information between utilities regarding pole overloading" which "includes sharing information in coordination with the Northern California Joint Pole Committee and the Southern California Joint Pole Committee"; 13 and (ii) "[t]imeframe for exchanging data for load calculations," 14 which refers to the 15 business day requirement adopted as an interim ordering paragraph in the Phase 1 Decision. However, both of the proposals go much farther than was contemplated in the ACR – but only one of the proposals places the extraneous operational requirements in an Appendix to G.O. 95, preserving the G.O. 95 rules themselves as construction standards.

Thus, SCE encourages the Commission to reject both MAP proposed rule changes and leave Rule 44.2 as it is. However, if the Commission decides to adopt one of the proposals, the Joint Electric Utilities' proposal should be the one adopted for the reasons argued below.

#### 1. Rule 44.4 (Cooperation) Proposal By The CIP Coalition

The CIP Coalition's proposal for a new Rule 44.4 in G.O. 95 is misplaced, unnecessary, and should be rejected. Four of the five new requirements are no different from what is currently required under Rule 44.2 and the Phase 1 Decision, specifically:

(i) sharing intrusive inspection data; 15 (ii) sharing other information necessary to perform

14 ACR at p. 7 (No. 21).

-29-

<sup>12</sup> General Order 95, Rule 44.2.

<sup>13</sup> ACR at p. 6 (No. 18).

<sup>15</sup> General Order 95, Rule 44.2, second paragraph ("including . . . providing intrusive pole loading data").

a pole load calculation;<sup>16</sup> (iii) sharing standard input values;<sup>17</sup> and (iv) providing such data within 15 business days.<sup>18</sup> The fifth requirement is outside the scope of Phase 2: the requirement to provide reasons for rejecting a pole attachment application. SCE agreed to this extraneous requirement as a concession in an attempt to achieve consensus, which failed.

The CIP Coalition proposal is duplicative of Rule 44.2 and does not belong in G.O. 95. As a result of the extensive discussions during the workshop process, SCE is convinced that the CIP Coalition proposal is designed to undermine current contractual agreements between SCE and its joint pole partners by inserting the new, unrelated requirement to provide reasons for rejecting pole attachment applications into the Commission's General Orders. Operational details among joint pole users are currently described in a Routine Handbook 19 (for joint owners, *i.e.*, members of the Southern California Joint Pole Committee) and in pole attachment agreements (for joint pole tenants). The joint pole committee handbook and party agreements are where operational details such as those described in the CIP Coalition proposal are negotiated. By putting such details into G.O. 95, the CIP Coalition seeks to short-circuit the contractual process, which would throw those agreements and the joint pole committees into disarray. This is an improper high-jacking of the Commission's rules, which should not be tolerated.

In short, the CIP Coalition "cooperation" proposal is unnecessary in light of current Rule 44.2. Today, companies must share intrusive inspection data and other data necessary to complete a pole load calculation. And the Phase 1 Decision requires that the information be exchanged within 15 business days. Each of these requirements is subject to enforcement by Commission Staff. It should be up to the parties, negotiating in good

-

General Order 95, Rule 44.2, second paragraph ("including . . . providing . . . other data necessary to perform those calculations").

General Order 95, Rule 44.2, second paragraph ("including . . . providing . . . other data necessary to perform those calculations").

<sup>18</sup> D.09-08-029, p. 53, Ordering Paragraph No. 3.

<sup>19</sup> Official Title: Southern California Joint Pole Committee (SCJPC) Routine Handbook (2010 Edition).

faith, to work out the operational details within the current contractual arrangements, including within the joint pole committee process. G.O. 95 should not be rewritten improperly to accomplish the business goals of specific parties. Instead, if the Commission feels that operational guidelines should be included within its rules, then the Joint Electric Utilities' proposal accomplishes that goal.

#### 2. Rules 44.2 And 44.4 (Cooperation) Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities

The language of the Joint Electric Utilities' proposal for Rules 44.2 and 44.4 is virtually identical to the CIP Coalition proposal, including the concession to explain reasons for pole attachment application rejections. The proposal also expressly acknowledges that the new requirements are duplicative of Rule 44.2. That is why the Joint Electric Utilities' proposal would move the second paragraph of Rule 44.2 to a new cooperation rule – Rule 44.4. The difference is that the Joint Electric Utilities' proposal places the operational specific language into a new Appendix to G.O. 95 as guidelines to Rule 44.4. This is consistent with the purpose and intent of G.O. 95 as a design and construction standard, and would preserve parties' contractual agreements as well as the joint pole committee process. New Appendix I would serve as a guidepost to parties during informal interactions, in future contractual negotiations, and throughout the joint pole committee process. If a dispute arises, the guidelines in the Appendix may be cited as the basis for a CPUC complaint against a non-conforming entity.

In short, SCE continues to urge the Commission to reject both MAP rules offered in Phase 2 in favor of the current language in Rule 44.2. However, if additional language is adopted, the only proposal that preserves the integrity of existing agreements and G.O. 95 itself is the Joint Electric Utilities' proposal.

#### K. MAP No. 11: General Order 95, Rule 48

There are two proposals related to G.O. 95, Rule 48. SCE supports both. The first is a change proposed by the Joint Electric Utilities to the language of Rule 48 to conform it to other

provisions of G.O. 95, Section IV. The second is a proposal by CPSD to form a technical workgroup that would survive this proceeding and make suggestions for revising all of G.O. 95, Section IV within 12 months. Both proposals are consistent with each other and both should be adopted.

#### 1. Rule 48 Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities

This proposal by the Joint Electric Utilities removes language from G.O. 95, Rule 48 that suggests that structures cannot fail under any load less than their maximum working load. The current rule, which cannot be complied with under ordinary circumstances, is inconsistent with the loading requirements in G.O. 95 that utilities actually use to construct their facilities. According to current Rule 48, if a utility constructs its facilities to G.O. 95 standards, and those facilities are subject to loads greater than the design loads but less than the maximum working load, those facilities must nonetheless remain standing in contravention of the laws of physics. Moreover, if the properly designed and constructed facilities do fail, the utility is then considered to be in nonconformance with Rule 48, an example of ineffective "gotcha" regulation.

Recognizing that it is not good regulatory policy to enforce a rule that cannot be met under ordinary operating conditions, the Joint Electric Utilities' proposal to conform Rule 48 to the other provisions in G.O. 95 was assigned to one of three special working groups. Ultimately, the working group considering the proposed change to Rule 48, which included a wide array of technical personnel, was not able to resolve the concerns expressed by CPSD and its legal counsel. In SCE's view, CPSD's principal concern was that it could not justify replacing a "zero tolerance" requirement with a standard that conforms to reality without the change being painted as a reduction in public or worker

-32-

\_

Research into the origins of Rule 48 revealed that a technical revision made in an earlier rulemaking designed to streamline the structure of Section IV of G.O. 95 had the unintended consequence of applying Rule 48's "no fail" standard to all wood poles. Previously, due to its placement within G.O. 95, the problematic language applied to materials like steel and concrete, but was not intended to apply to wood. Although CPSD was advised of this accident of history, CPSD nonetheless has refused to support correcting the error.

safety even though the rule cannot be met and utilities do not currently use Rule 48 when designing and constructing facilities.

In their opposition comments in the Workshop Report, CPSD and LA County expressed the concern that the proposed modifications would change Rule 48's current performance standard (will not fail) into a design standard (must be constructed using proper safety factors). However, the performance standard in Rule 48 is amorphous because it does not actually lead to more robustly constructed facilities than are otherwise built using the other provisions of G.O. 95. Rule 48 only comes into play after a structure has failed, and therefore has no safety value whatsoever.

In proposing this change, the Joint Electric Utilities intended to draft requirements that are consistent and capable of being followed. It is irrefutable that Rule 48 conflicts with other G.O. 95 rules, including other subparts of Rule 48 (Rules 48.2, 48.4, and 48.7) and Appendix F. These standards require that the material yield strengths be divided by the safety factors specified in Table 4, Rule 44. Not one purports to require that the maximum working loads be multiplied by the safety factors. This is for good reason. The result would be a requirement that poles be enormously oversized at great expense.

It is also demonstrably not true (as CPSD claims) that this proposed rule change will lower safety requirements. First, during the working group discussions, electric utility representatives confirmed to CPSD that their design criteria currently does not include the multiplication of maximum working loads by the safety factors specified in Rule 44. Thus, the proposed rule revision would not alter their current practices. Further, CPSD has not offered adequate justification in either phase of this proceeding demonstrating a deficiency of the historical performance of overhead electric and communication lines, nor has it done a cost-benefit analysis to support the increased costs of constructing to Rule 48's standards as opposed to the rest of Section IV.

Finally, CPSD complains that the Joint Electric Utilities' rule revision could not easily be enforced. As an impossible to meet standard, the current Rule 48 is also

impossible to enforce. As a legal matter, the utilities do not believe that an enforcement proceeding could survive challenge based solely on an alleged violation of Rule 48 due to all the problems inherent in the rule as described herein. Rule 48 should be modified now in recognition of actual design standards and practices.

#### 2. Ordering Paragraph Proposal By CPSD (Regarding GO 95, Section IV)

In its Comments to the Workshop Report, SCE joined PG&E and SDG&E in support of CPSD's proposal to form a technical workgroup for the purpose of refreshing Section IV rules, as appropriate. SCE notes that no party has opposed CPSD's proposal. SCE continues to support CPSD's proposal, and urges its adoption along with the change to Rule 48 proposed above. In addition, SCE respectfully requests the Commission establish firm timelines and goals for the proposed technical workgroup.

#### L. MAP No. 12: General Order 95, Rule 91.5

SCE continues to oppose this proposal to require marking of communications cables as to ownership for the reasons stated in the Workshop Report.

#### M. MAP No. 13: General Order 165, Section V

For MAP No. 13, Mussey Grade proposed a data collection rule opposed by every electric utility and communication company. As an alternative, PG&E proposed a collaboration among the electric utilities and CPSD to discuss and report on CPSD's data needs. To avoid duplication of arguments in these opening briefs, SCE incorporates by reference the supporting and opposing arguments contained in the Workshop Report and PG&E's arguments in its Opening Brief. As indicated in the Workshop Report, SCE strongly opposes Mussey Grade's proposal and supports PG&E's alternative.

#### 1. Section V Proposal By CPSD And the Mussey Grade Road Alliance

The Mussey Grade data collection proposal is ill-conceived. Rules must be crafted such that SCE can determine what it must do to comply so that we can draft internal processes and procedures designed to meet the requirements of the rule. This rule completely fails that test. This proposal is not a rule that belongs in G.O. 95 and should not be adopted.

#### 2. Ordering Paragraph Proposal By PG&E

The utilities understand why Mussey Grade would like us to collect all conceivable data on fire ignitions. However, such a proposal is not practical nor reasonable. More time than was available in the workshops is needed to explore the wide range of data collection options. As a compromise, PG&E proposed that the electric utilities and CPSD meet to determine what data CPSD or other agencies need and how best to meet that need. This proposal from PG&E, unlike the hastily proposed rule from Mussey Grade, should be adopted.

#### N. MAP No. 14: Fire Maps

None of the three mapping proposals would significantly affect SCE's service territory because none of the maps would change the applicability of the Cal-FIRE FRAP Maps to the majority of SCE's territory in those cases where distinctions are made in the rules between fire hazard areas and non-fire hazard areas. SCE reserves the right to argue in a future proceeding for an alternative to using the Cal-FIRE FRAP Map in Southern California.

# 1. Ordering Paragraph Proposal By CPSD And The Mussey Grade Road Alliance

SCE opposes adoption of this ordering paragraph for the reasons stated by PG&E in Appendix B of the Workshop Report. Specifically, SCE believes this proposal would

impose significant costs on the utilities that are duplicative of the work already performed by Cal-FIRE and the CIP Coalition in the development of the Reax Engineering map. Additionally, the electric utilities and communications companies are not qualified to develop new fire maps, which was the conclusion of the mapping subgroup, and which led to the CIP Coalition hiring an outside consultant to develop the Reax Map.

#### 2. Rule 31.2 Fire Maps Proposal By CIP 1

SCE voted neutral on this proposal. Because the boundaries of the Reax Map specifically exclude the majority of SCE's service territory, SCE takes no position on the adoption of this proposal.

#### 3. Rule 31.2 Fire Maps Proposal By CIP 2

SCE voted neutral on this proposal. Because the boundaries of the Reax Map specifically exclude the majority of SCE's service territory, SCE takes no position on the adoption of this proposal.

V.

#### **ANCILLARY ISSUES**

#### A. MAP No. 15: Cost Recovery

As SCE has reiterated throughout this proceeding, cost recovery is a major issue because the Company began its three-year rate case cycle prior to adoption of the Phase 1 Decision.<sup>21</sup> As a result, the costs currently being incurred in compliance with the Phase 1 Decision are not presently included in rates. Cost of service ratemaking principles demand a ratemaking mechanism that will ensure recovery of incremental costs between rate cases for expenses incurred to comply with new regulatory requirements.

-

-36-

<sup>21</sup> See Workshop Report, at pp. B-253 to B-260.

The Phase 1 Decision imposed substantial costs on SCE due primarily to the increase in vegetation clearance requirements to 48 inches from 18 inches in high fire hazard areas. The requirement only applies to Southern California. On the subject of cost recovery, the Phase 1 Decision articulates the principle "that each cost-of-service regulated utility is entitled to recover reasonable costs prudently incurred to comply with the changes to the Commission's rules adopted today." However, the decision deferred until Phase 2 the discussion of what the proper mechanism should be to implement cost recovery. Pursuant to the decision, SCE established a memorandum account to record its incremental costs. Those costs are currently accumulating in the FHPMA (Fire Hazard Prevention Memorandum Account).

Below are two proposals for cost recovery mechanisms to ensure regulated utilities have the opportunity to recover the costs of complying with new regulations adopted in both the Phase 1 and the upcoming Phase 2 Decision. The utility proposal is the only one that maintains the regulatory compact by adopting a process to timely recover reasonable costs prudently incurred to comply with the new regulations. The DRA and TURN proposal is deeply flawed and should not be adopted.

#### 1. Cost Recovery Proposal By DRA And TURN

The TURN and DRA proposal, if adopted, would require that recovery of the costs recorded in the memorandum accounts approved in the Phase 1 Decision be delayed until presented for approval in a future general rate case. This requirement will add unnecessary complexity to the GRC process for SCE. Generally, a GRC is used to forecast future expenses. And a GRC is prepared 18 months in advance of a decision. Here, SCE has already prepared its 2012 GRC, and we did not include testimony regarding costs recorded in our FHPMA because, at the time of our July NOI filing, less than a year of costs had been incurred, and no decision has been issued in this proceeding

-

-37-

<sup>22</sup> D.09-08-029, p. 43.

adopting a cost recovery mechanism. Therefore, under the TURN and DRA proposal, SCE will have to wait until its 2015 GRC, where it will be required to submit testimony regarding costs incurred beginning in 2009, a six year delay. Even more troubling is the fact that SCE, DRA, and intervenors will have to prepare and argue a separate case within the GRC regarding the reasonableness of those recorded costs, adding to the volume of testimony, rebuttal testimony, briefs, and evidentiary hearing days.

Additionally, while the GRC is pending, SCE will continue to incur costs up until the GRC decision is issued. Thus, under the TURN and DRA proposal, it is possible that SCE will have to wait another three years, until 2018, to litigate again and then fully recover the costs it incurred during the 18 months its 2015 GRC was pending, finally recovering all the costs spent to comply with the new regulations adopted in this proceeding.<sup>23</sup>

In contrast, the regulated utilities' proposal uses more traditional procedures outside of a GRC for review and recovery of recorded costs, resulting in a more efficient and effective process not only for the utilities, but also for intervening parties. Under this proposal, utilities would have the option of recovering costs annually until such costs have been forecasted in a general rate case and the memorandum account is closed.

TURN and DRA's fear that the utilities' proposal would result in "automatic" recovery is overstated and unfounded. For SCE, the proposal would permit us to transfer annually the FHPMA balance to the Base Revenue Requirement Balancing Account (BRRBA), where the costs will be evaluated for reasonableness in our ERRA Review Proceeding (no differently than most of its other memorandum and balancing accounts), which is a proceeding in which DRA and TURN regularly participate. It does not make

SCE has included in its 2012 GRC forecasts cost increases due to the Phase 1 Decision. If its forecasts are adopted, SCE proposes to stop recording Phase 1 costs in its FHPMA following its 2012 GRC decision. This would also mean, under the TURN and DRA proposal, that SCE would stop recording Phase 1 costs in 2012 because expected ongoing costs should be included in rates with the 2012 GRC Decision, but SCE would not recover the costs it actually incurred from 2009 through 2012 until its 2015 GRC Decision is issued.

sense to force SCE to wait until our 2015 GRC (a much larger proceeding than ERRA) to submit recorded costs when an annual proceeding designed to evaluate such costs already exists.

## 2. <u>Cost Recovery Proposal By The Joint Electric Utilities, PacifiCorp, Sierra</u> <u>Pacific, And The Small LECs</u>

The cost recovery proposal presented by the regulated utilities should be adopted because it ensures that the utilities actually have the opportunity to timely recover their reasonable costs prudently incurred as a result of the new regulations, as ordered in the Phase 1 Decision. By ensuring that cost-of-service regulated utilities can recover such costs, the utilities' proposal will provide necessary funding, without delay, for programs and other actions necessary to comply with measures adopted in this proceeding.

The utilities' proposal utilizes existing processes for most of the affected utilities that are already used to review costs recorded in memorandum and balancing accounts (i.e. Annual Electric True-Up Advice Letter filing for PG&E, ERRA Review Proceeding for SCE, and the CHCF-A advice letter process for the Small LECs). Alternatively, the utilities would have the option of filing annually or less often a Tier 3 Advice Letter to recover the costs recorded to date (e.g., SDG&E and SoCalGas propose a new annual FHPMA balance Tier 3 advice letter). Each of these processes include at minimum protest periods and full review by the Commission ending with a final decision or resolution. This process gives both DRA and intervenors ample opportunity to participate and consider the reasonableness of the proffered costs.

#### **B.** Implementation Issues

SCE recommends that for all rules proposed in the Workshop Report except MAP No. 13 (the Mussey Grade data collection proposal), the Phase 2 Decision should state that the affected companies shall have 90 days following the date of adoption of the decision to implement the

requirements. Implementation in this context means that the affected companies have established processes and procedures designed to comply with the new rules.

In order to avoid, among other things, major implementation issues, the Mussey Grade data collection requirement (MAP No. 13) should be rejected. However, if any version of the Mussey Grade version of MAP No. 13 is adopted over the ordering paragraph proposed by PG&E, SCE requests that implementation be suspended pending an Application for Rehearing. As argued herein, that proposal is ambiguous, costly, and cannot be operationalized as written. It also violates attorney-client privilege and would needlessly expose SCE to liability. In the event the proposal is adopted, SCE plans to file an Application for Rehearing and would request that implementation of the rule be suspended pending resolution of that Application.

#### VI.

#### **CONCLUSION**

SCE appreciates the commitment of the parties, the ALJ, facilitators Jean Vieth and Angela Minkin, Assigned Commissioner Simon, CPSD, and the Commission to this proceeding. SCE respectfully submits this Opening Brief in support of the Phase 2 Workshop Report.

Respectfully submitted,

JAMES M. LEHRER ROBERT F. LeMOINE

### /s/ Robert F. LeMoine

By: Robert F. LeMoine

Attorneys for SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

2244 Walnut Grove Avenue Post Office Box 800 Rosemead, California 91770 Telephone: (626) 302-4182 Facsimile: (626) 302-6693 E-mail:robert.f.lemoine@sce.com

September 03, 2010

#### **CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE**

I hereby certify that, pursuant to the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, I have this day served a true copy of OPENING BRIEF OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) ON THE PHASE 2 WORKSHOP REPORT on all parties identified on the attached service list(s). Service was effected by one or more means indicated below:

Transmitting the copies via e-mail to all parties who have provided an e-mail address. First class mail will be used if electronic service cannot be effectuated.

Executed this 9th day of September, 2010, at Rosemead, California.

/s/ Raquel Ippoliti

Raquel Ippoliti
Project Analyst
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

2244 Walnut Grove Avenue Post Office Box 800 Rosemead, California 91770



**CPUC Home** 

### CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

**Service Lists** 

PROCEEDING: R0811005 - CPUC - OIR TO REVISE

FILER: CPUC **LIST NAME: LIST** 

LAST CHANGED: SEPTEMBER 7, 2010

#### **DOWNLOAD THE COMMA-DELIMITED FILE ABOUT COMMA-DELIMITED FILES**

#### **Back to Service Lists Index**

#### **Parties**

NELSON G. BINGLE, III OSMOSE UTILITIES SERVICES, INC. 215 GREENCASTLE ROAD

CHRISTOPHER A. HILEN ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL SIERRA PACIFIC POWER COMPANY 6100 NEIL ROAD RENO, NV 89520 FOR: SIERRA PACIFIC POWER COMPANY

OSCAR A. ALVAREZ REGULATORY STANDARDS AND COMPLIANCE 111 N. HOPE STREET, ROOM 1246 LOS ANGELES, CA 90012

STEVEN M. MEYER PSC TECHNOLOGY INCORPORATED 21839 SADDLE PEAK RD TOPANGA, CA 90290 FOR: PSC TECHNOLOY INCORPORATED

ROBERT F. LEMOINE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON

MATTHEW YATES LEGAL COUNSEL WECC TYRONE, GA 30290

FOR: OSMOSE UTILITIES SERVICES, INC.

SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84108

FOR: WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL (WECC)

.....

J. SCOTT KUHN COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES KENNETH HAHN HALL OF ADMINISTRATION 500 W. TEMPLE STREET, RM 648 LOS ANGELES, CA 90012 FOR: LOS ANGELES COUNTY

SHANISE BLACK DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY, LEGAL DIV. LOS ANGELES DEPT. OF WATER AND POWER LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF WATER & POWERA 111 NORTH HOPE STREET, ROOM 340 LOS ANGELES, CA 90012 FOR: L.A. DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND POWER FOR: CITY OF LOS ANGELES, DEPT OF WATER AND POWER

> JESUS G. ROMAN VERIZON CALIFORNIA INC. 112 LAKEVIEW CANYON ROAD, CA501LB THOUSAND OAKS, CA 91362 FOR: VERIZON CALIFORNIA

DIANE CONKLIN MUSSEY GRADE ROAD ALLIANCE

2244 WALNUT GROVE AVE. ROSEMEAD, CA 91770

FOR: SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON

PO BOX 683 RAMONA, CA 92065 FOR: MUSSEY GRADE ROAD ALLIANCE

MICHAEL BAGLEY

KEITH MELVILLE SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY VERIZON WIRELESS SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

101 ASH STREET, HQ 13D 15505 SAND CANYON AVENUE IRVINE, CA 92612 FOR: SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY FOR: VERIZON WIRELESS

JON DOHM CROWN CASTLE USA, WEST AREA 510 CASTILLO STREET, SUITE 303 SANTA BARBARA, CA 93101 FOR: CALWA

JAMES E. BRITSCH FACILITIES MANAGEMENT SPECIALISTS LLC
1231 CRESTLINE DRIVE SANTA BARBARA, CA 93105 FOR: FACILITIES MANAGEMENT SPECIALISTS, LLC.

CLEVELAND LEE CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION LEGAL DIVISION ROOM 5122 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214 FOR: DRA

KIMBERLY LIPPI CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION LEGAL DIVISION ROOM 5001 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214 FOR: CPSD

FOR: THE UTILITY REFROM NETWORK

NINA SUETAKE ROBERT FINKELSTEIN
THE UTILITY REFORM NETWORK
115 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 900
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94104

ROBERT FINKELSTEIN
THE UTILITY REFORM NETWORK
115 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 900
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94104 FOR: TURN

KRISTIN L. JACOBSON SPRINT NEXTEL 201 MISSION STREET, SUITE 1500 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 FOR: SPRINT NEXTEL

LISE H. JORDAN, ESQ. PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 77 BEALE STREET, B30A. RM 3151 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 FOR: PG & E

NELSONYA CAUSBY 225 MARKET ST., STE 2025 355 BRYANT STREET, SUITE 410 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 AT&T CALIFORNIA FOR: AT&T CALIFORNIA AND NEW CINGULAR FOR: COMCAST PHONE OF CALIFORNIA/TW WIRELESS PCS, LLC

PETER A. CASCIATO A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION TELECOM OF CALIFORNIA, LLC/TIME WARNER

JEANNE B. ARMSTRONG GOODIN MACBRIDE SQUERI DAY & LAMPREY LLP GOODIN MACBRIDE SQUERI DAY & LAMPREY LLP 505 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 900 505 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 900 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111 FOR: CTIA-THE WIRELESS ASSOCIATION FOR: PACIFICORP

MARLO A. GO

PATRICK M. ROSVALL PATRICK M. ROSVALL

COOPER, WHITE & COOPER LLP

201 CALIFORNIA STREET, 17TH FLOOR
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111

FOR: SMALL LECS, SUREWEST TELEPHONE

SARAH DEYOUNG

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CALTEL

50 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 500

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111

FOR: CALTEL

SARAH DEYOUNG

DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP

505 MONTGOMERY STREET, SUITE 800

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111-6533

FOR: COXCOM TNG / COX EDWARD O'NEILL SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111-6533 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111-6533 FOR: COXCOM, INC./COX CALIFORNIA TELCOM FOR: NEXTG NETWORKS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. LLC

JEFFREY P. GRAY DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE, LLP

505 MONTGOMERY STREET, SUITE 800

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111-6533

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111-6533 FOR: CALIFORNIA INDEPENDENT SYSTEM OPERATOR

FOR: SUNESYS, LLC

SUZANNE TOLLER

LARRY ABERNATHY DAVEY TREE SURGERY COMPANY PO BOX 5015 LIVERMORE, CA 94551 FOR: DAVEY TREE SURGERY COMPANY

JOHN GUTTERREZ DRECTOR, GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMCAST 3055 COMCAST PLACE 3055 COMCAST PLACE LIVERMORE, CA 94551-9559 FOR: COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

ANITA TAFF-RICE EXTENET SYSTEMS, LLC 1547 PALOS VERDES MALL, NO. 298 WALNUT CREEK, CA 94597 FOR: EXTENET SYSTEMS (CALIFORNIA) LLC FOR: T-MOBILE

LEON M. BLOOMFIELD WILSON & BLOOMFIELD, LLP 1901 HARRISON STREET, SUITE 1620 OAKLAND, CA 94612

WILLIAM P. ADAMS ADAMS ELECTRICAL SAFETY CONSULTING LOMPICO WATERSHED CONSERVANCY
716 BRETT AVENUE PO BOX 99
ROHNERT PARK, CA 94928-4012 FELTON, CA 95018

KEVIN COLLINS FOR: ADAMS ELECTRICAL SAFETY CONSULTING FOR: LOMPICO WATERSHED CONSERVANCY

BARRY F. MCCARTHY MCCARTHY & BERLIN, LLP 100 W. SAN FERNANDO ST., SUITE 501

SAN JOSE, CA 95113

ROBERT L. DELSMAN NEXTG NETWORKS OF CALIFORNIA, INC 2216 OTOOLE AVENUE SAN JOSE, CA 95131 FOR: NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY FOR: NEXTG NETWORKS OF CALIFORNIA, INC.

CASEY HASHIMOTO TURLOCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT 333 CANAL DRIVE TURLOCK, CA 95380 FOR: TURLOCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT

STEPHEN R. CIESLEWICZ CN UTILITY CONSULTING, INC 120 PLEASANT HILL AVE. NORTH, STE.190 SEBASTOPOL, CA 95472 FOR: CN UTILITY CONSULTING, INC

JUDITH SANDERS CALIFORNIA ISO 151 BLUE RAVINE ROAD FOLSOM, CA 95630 FOR: CALIFORNIA INDEPENT SYSTEM OPERATOR CORPORATION

LANDIS MARTTILA TBEW 1245 30 ORANGE TREE CIRCLE VACAVILLE, CA 95687 FOR: IBEW

CHARLIE BORN FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS ELK GROVE, CA 95759 FOR: FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS ERNYLEE CHAMLEE CHIEF, WILDLAND FIRE PREVENTION ENGINEER CAL DEP OF FOREST AND FIRE PROTECTION 1131 S STREET SACRAMENTO, CA 95811 FOR: CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROCTECTION

BRUCE MCLAUGHLIN BRAUN & BLAISING MCLAUGHLIN, P.C. 915 L STREET, SUITE 1270 BRAUN BLAISING MCLAUGHLIN, P.C. SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 915 L STREET, SUITE 1270 FOR: CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL UTILITIES SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 ASSOCIATIONS

JUSTIN C. WYNNE OUSTIN C. WYNNE ATTORNEY AT LAW FOR: CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL UTILITIES ASSOCIATION

CALIFORNIA CABLE TV ASSOCIATION ATTORNEY

1001 K STREET, 2ND FLOOR ELLISON, SCHNEIDER & HARRIS LLP
SACRAMENTO, CA 95814-3832 2600 CAPITOL AVENUE CULTE
FOR: CCTA - CALIFORNIA CULTE FOR: CCTA - CALIFORNIA CABLE &

SACRAMENTO, CA 95816-5905

TELECOMMUNICATIONS ASSOCIATION

FOR: SIERRA PACIFIC POWER

KAREN NORENE MILLS ATTORNEY AT LAW CALIFORNIA FARM BUREAU FEDERATION FOR: CALIFORNIA FARM BUREAU FEDERATION FOR: SMUD

STEVEN M. COHN ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 2300 RIVER PLAZA DRIVE 6201 S ST., M.S. B406; PO BOX 15830 SACRAMENTO, CA 95833 SACRAMENTO, CA 95852-1830

.....

#### **Information Only**

JEREMY SADLER EMAIL ONLY EMAIL ONLY, CA 00000

TARYN CIARDELLA SR. LEGAL SECRETARY NV ENERGY EMAIL ONLY EMAIL ONLY, NV 00000

MRW & ASSOCIATES, LLC EMAIL ONLY EMAIL ONLY, CA 00000 FOR: MRW & ASSOCIATES, INC BOB RITTER CROWN CASTLE USA, INC. 2000 CORPORATE DRIVE CANONSBURG, PA 15317

NICK LIMBEROPOULOS CROWN CASTLE 2000 CORPORATE DRIVE CANONSBURG, PA 15317 MIKE RODEN EXECUTIVE DIR-REGULATORY CINCULAR WIRELESS SERVICES, LLC 1057 LENOX PARK BLVD RM - 1C138 ATLANTA, GA 30319

MATT PAWLOWSKI

NEXTERA ENERGY RESOURCES
RELIABILITY & COMPLIANCE GROUP
700 UNIVERSE BLVD.
23408-2683

MOUND, MN 55364
TOD: EBONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

ASSOCIATE GENERAL COUNSEL FOR: FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

MARJORIE HERLTH
REGIONAL DIRECTOR, PUBLIC POLICY
OWEST COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION MARJORIE HERLTH 1801 CALIFORNIA ST., 10TH FL. DENVER, CO 80202

JORDAN A. WHITE SENTOR ATTORNEY PACIFICORP 1407 W. NORTH TEMPLE, SUITE 320 SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84116

ULARI SHEEHAN
OSMOSE UTILITIES SERVICES, INC.
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
4862 S PURPLE SAGE DRIVE
CHANDLER, AZ 85248

LARI SHEEHAN
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
500 W. TEMPLE STRFFT

500 W. TEMPLE STREET, ROOM 723 LOS ANGELES, CA 90012

ELECTRICAL SERVICE MANAGER

LOS ANGELES DEPT OF WATER AND POWER

111 N. HOPE STREET, ROOM 856

LOS ANGELES, CA 90012-2694

STANTON J. SNYDER, ESQ.

DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY, LEGAL DIV.

DEPARTMENT OF WATER & POWER

111 N. HOPE STREET, ROOM 340

FOR: CITY OF LOS ANGELES, DEPT OF WATER AND POWER

MICHAEL R. THORP SEMPRA ENERGY LOS ANGELES, CA 90013-1011 FOR: SAN DEIGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY LOS ANGLELES, CA 90063-3294

JOHN R. TODD PREVENTION SERVICES BUREAU COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES FIRE DEPARTMENT 1320 N. EASTERN AVENUE

CRAIG HUNTER ATTORNEY AT LAW JACOUE LOPEZ VERIZON CALIFORNIA INC WILSON ELSER MOSKOWITZ EDELMAN & DICKER 112 LAKEVIEW CANYON ROAD, CA501LB 555 S. FLOWER STREET, SUITE 2900 THOUSAND OAKS, CA 91362 LOS ANGELES, CA 90071-2407

LORRAINE A. KOCEN STEVE FORD
SENIOR STAFF CONSULTANT
SENIOR STAFF CONSULTANT
WERIZON CALIFORNIA INC.
CHINO OFFICE BUILDING
112 S. LAKEVIEW CANYON ROAD, MC 501LS
THOUSAND OAKS, CA 91362
CHINO, CA 91710-7026

STEVE FORD FOR: CONSTRUCTION METHODS

CASE ADMINISTRATION LAW DEPARTMENT SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

2244 WALNUT GROVE AVE., ROOM 370

ROSEMEAD, CA 91770

CA 91770

CA 91770 ROSEMEAD, CA 91770

JAMES LEHRER SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON ROSEMEAD, CA 91770

NGUYEN QUAN BEAR VALLEY ELECTRIC SERVICE 630 EAST FOOTHILL BLVD. SAN DIMAS, CA 91773

STEVE M. DUNN DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES PO BOX 1460 ALHAMBRA, CA 91802-1460

SHAWN CAINE
LAW OFFICE OF SHAWN CAINE
1125 CAMINO DEL MAR, SUITE D DEL MAR, CA 92014

DAVE DOWNEY NORTH COUNTY TIMES 207 E. PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE ESCONDIDO, CA 92025

JOSEPH W. MITCHELL, PH. D. M-BAR TECHNOLOGIES AND CONSULTING, LLC SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 19412 KIMBALL VALLEY RD RAMONA, CA 92065

ALLEN K. TRIAL 101 ASH STREET, HQ-12B SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

ESTHER NORTHRUP COX COMMUNICATIONS 350 10TH AVENUE, SUITE 600 SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

LAURA M. EARL SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 101 ASH STREET, HQ-12 SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

LISA URICK
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
SEMPRA ENERG:
101 ASH STREET, HQ-12
SAN DIEGO, CA 92101-3017
TOD: SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECT FOR: SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

STEVE CHRISTIANSON
TOSDAL SMITH STEINER & WAX
401 WEST A STREET, SUITE 320 SAN DIEGO, CA 92101-7911

DON LIDDELL DOUGLASS & LIDDELL 2928 2ND AVENUE SAN DIEGO, CA 92103

THORSNES, BARTOLOTTA & MCGUIRE

2550 FIFTH AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR
SAN DIEGO, CA 92103

DAVID DOHREN

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
8316 CENTURY PARK COURT, CP51D

SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 FOR: SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC

GREGORY L. WALTERS

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

8316 CENTURY PARK COURT

SAN DIEGO. C2 92123

SAN DIEGO. C2 92123 SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 FOR: SAN DIEGO GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

THE LAW OFFICES OF ALEXANDER M. SCHACK JUSTIN CASHMER 16870 WEST BERNARDO DRIVE, SUITE 400 SAN DIEGO, CA 92127

VERIZON CALIFORNIA INC. 11 S. 4TH ST. REDLANDS, CA 92373

BILL D. CARNAHAN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR, PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 3900 MAIN STREET RIVERSIDE, CA 92522-0600

MITCHELL S. WAGNER 24641 WASHINGTON AVE MURRIETA, CA 92562

LINDA BURTON LINDA BURTON WILLIAM A.G. WILDE
SIERRA TELEPHONE COMPANY, INC. PRESIDENT
PO BOX 219 CREATIVE INTERCONNECT COM. LLC
OAKHURST, CA 93644-0219 555 OLD COUNTY RD., SUITE 100
FOR: SIERRA TELEPHONE COMPANY, INC. SAN CARLOS, CA 94070

WILLIAM A.G. WILDE CREATIVE INTERCONNECT COM. LLC

ELAINE M. DUNCAN

WILLIAM K. SANDERS VERIZON CALIFORNIA, INC.

DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY

711 VAN NESS AVENUE, SUITE 300

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102

FOR: VERIZON CALIFORNIA INC.

DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, RM. 234

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-4682

JAMES HENDRY UTILITIES SPECIALIST
THE UTILITY REFORM NETWORK
SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMM.
115 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 900
1155 MARKET STREET, FOURTH FLOOR
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94104
FOR: TURN SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

MARCEL HAWIGER FOR: TURN

MARISA MITCHELL REGINA COSTA
ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENTIST THE UTILITY REFORM NETWORK
ASPEN ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP 115 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 900
235 MONTGOMERY STREET, SUITE 935 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94104
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94104 FOR: TURN

STEPHEN P. BOWEN

BARBARA H. CLEMENT
ATTORNEY AT LAW
BOWEN LAW GROUP
77 BEALE STREET, B30A
235 MONTGOMERY STREET, SUITE 742
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105
FOR: PG&E BARBARA H. CLEMENT

ERROL KISSINGER PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY DIRECTOR-REGULATORY
77 BEALE STREET; MC B10A AT&T CALIFORNIA
SAN EDANCISCO CA 94105 525 MARKET STREET 1 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

FASSIL FENIKILE 525 MARKET STREET, ROOM 1925 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

GWEN JOHNSON AT&T CALIFORNIA AT&T CALLFURNIA
525 MARKET STREET, STE 1927 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

KEITH KROM GENERAL ATTORNEY GENERAL ATTORNEY AT&T CALIFORNIA 525 MARKET STREET, SUITE 1904 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

LAUREN ROHDE

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

77 BEALE STREET, B9A

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 PACIFIC BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY 525 MARKET STREET, 18TH FL., NO. 15

MICHELLE CHOO PETER M. HAYES
AT&T CALIFORNIA PACIFIC BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY
525 MARKET STREET, 20TH FLOOR 525 MARKET STREET, RM 1919
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

RACHEL A. BIRKEY

OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL

U.S. DEPT. OF AGRICULTURE

3 NEW MONTGOMERY ST., 17TH FLOOR

REGULATORY FILE ROOM

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

77 BEALE STREET, B30A / PO BOX 7442

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

ROSS JOHNSON AREA MGR - REGULATORY AT&T CALIFORNIA AT&T CALIFORNIA 77 BEALE STREET, MC B13L 525 MARKET STREET, 19TH FL, RM 33 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

THOMAS SELHORST SENIOR PARALEGAL AT&T CALIFORNIA 525 MARKET STREET, 20TH FLR, RM 2023 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94107 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

E. GARTH BLACK

COOPER, WHITE & COOPER, LLP

201 CALIFORNIA STREET, 17TH FLOOR

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111

FOR SUPERMENT TREEDIONE FOR: SUREWEST TELEPHONE

GOODIN MACBRIDE SQUERI DAY & LAMPREY DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP 505 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 900 505 MONTGOMERY ST, STE 800 SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111 SAN FRANCISCO. CA 94111-60 SUZY HONG

MARIA CARBONE

DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE, LLP

505 MONTGOMERY STREET, SUITE 800

53 SANTA YNEZ AVENUE

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94112

ROBIN HARRINGTON STAFF COUNSEL CAL.DEPT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 250 HAMILTON AVENUE, PO BOX 10250 PO BOX 944246 SACRAMENTO, CA 94244-2460

GRANT KOLLING

GARRY J.D. HUBERT HUBERT & YASUTAKE

1320 WILLOW PASS ROAD, SUITE 590

CONCORD. CA 94520

CONCORD. CA 94608

CONCORD. CA 94608

CARLOS FERNANDEZ-PELLO

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA BERKELEY

DEPARTMENT OF MECHANICAL ENGINEERING
6105 ETCHEVERRY HALL

ROBERT WOLFE

AT&T CALIFORNIA

310 MARTIN AVENUE, ROOM 100A BERKELEY, CA 94720-1740

MICHAEL G. NELSON, ESQ. 100 W. SAN FERNANDO STREET, SUITE 501 MC CARTHY & BERI SAN JOSE, CA 95113

SANDY LAMBOY PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 77 BEALE STREET, MC B13L

MARGARET L. TOBIAS TOBIAS LAW OFFICE 460 PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE

JOSH DAVIDSON SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111-6533

CASE COORDINATION
CALIFORNIA ENERGY MARKETS
425 DIVISADERO STREET, SUITE 303
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94117-2242

CASE COORDINATION
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
PO BOX 770000; MC B9A
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94177

AMY BARTELL CITY OF PALO ALTO PALO ALTO, CA 94303

ALEXIS K. WODTKE ALEATO ...
STAFF ATTORNEY CITY OF PALO ALTO

STAFF ATTOKNEI

250 HAMILTON AVENUE, PO BOX 10250

CONSUMER FEDERATION OF CALIFORNIA

520 S. EL CAMINO REAL, STE. 340 SAN MATEO, CA 94402

DOUGLAS GARRETT

SUSIE BERLIN MC CARTHY & BERLIN, LLP 100 W SAN FERNANDO ST., STE 501 SAN JOSE, CA 95113

LYNNE MARTINEZ DIRECTOR GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC. 4210 CORONADO AVE. STOCKTON, CA 95204

THOMAS S. KIMBALL MODESTO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 1231 11TH STREET MODESTO, CA 95352

JOY A. WARREN MODESTO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 1231 11TH STREET MODESTO, CA 95354

BRIAN LAFOLLETTE TURLOCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT 333 EAST CANAL DRIVE / PO BOX 949 TURLOCK, CA 95381-0949

GAYATRI SCHILBERG JBS ENERGY 311 D STREET, SUITE A WEST SACRAMENTO, CA 95605

SCOTT TOMASHEFSKY NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 651 COMMERCE DRIVE ROSEVILLE, CA 95678

SCOTT BLAISING BRAUN BLAISING MCLAUGHLIN, P.C. 915 L STREET, SUITE 1270 SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 SACRAMENTO, CA 95814

LESLA LEHTONEN VP LEGAL AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS CALIFORNIA CABLE & TELECOM ASSOCIATION 1001 K STREET, 2ND FLOOR SACRAMENTO, CA 95814-3832

ANDREW B. BROWN

CHASE B. KAPPEL

ELLISON, SCHNEIDER & HARRIS LLP

2600 CAPITOL AVENUE, SUITE 400

SACRAMENTO, CA 95816-5905

CHASE B. KAPPEL

ELLISON SCHNEIDER & HARRIS LLP

2600 CAPITOL AVENUE, SUITE 400

SACRAMENTO, CA 95816-5905

LYNN HAUG

MARGARET FELTS ATTORNEY AT LAW PRESIDENT

ELLISON, SCHNEIDER & HARRIS, LLP CALIFORNIA COMMUNICATIONS ASSN
2600 CAPITOL AVENUE, SUITE 400 1321 HOWE AVE. SUITE 202
SACRAMENTO, CA 95816-5905 SACRAMENTO, CA 95825

DAVID L. BROWN, P.E. SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
6201 S ST., M.S. D-104; PO BOX 15830
SACRAMENTO, CA 95852-1830

PACIFICORP
825 NE MULTNOMAH, SUITE
PORTILAND OR 97232

CATHIE ALLEN 825 NE MULTNOMAH, SUITE 2000 PORTLAND, OR 97232

HEIDE CASWELL PACIFICORP
825 NE MULTNOMAH STREET, SUITE 1500 825 NE MULT
PORTLAND, OR 97232

SHANNON M. MCWHINNEY 825 NE MULTNOMAH ST., STE. 1800 PORTLAND, OR 97232

CYNTHIA MANHEIM

CYNTHIA MANHEIM
GENERAL ATTORNEY
CINGULAR WIRELESS SERVICES, LLC
1600 7TH AVENUE, ROOM 1506
16331 NE 72ND WAY, ROOM RTC 1
SEATTLE, WA 98191
FOR: QWEST COMMUNICATIONS CORP. ADAM L. SHERR QWEST COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

#### **State Service**

MELISSA SLAWSON, ESQ CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION EMAIL ONLY EMAIL ONLY, CA 00000

CYNTHIA LEE CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION SAFETY & RELIABILITY BRANCH 320 WEST 4TH STREET SUITE 500 LOS ANGELES, CA 90013

.....

MICHAEL ROBERTSON CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION SAFETY & RELIABILITY BRANCH

RAFFY STEPANIAN CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION SAFETY & RELIABILITY BRANCH

320 WEST 4TH STREET SUITE 500 LOS ANGELES, CA 90013

BRIAN D. SCHUMACHER CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION ENERGY DIVISION AREA 4-A 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

DAVID K. LEE CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION ENERGY DIVISION AREA 4-A 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

ERIC CHIANG CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION ENERGY DIVISION AREA 4-A 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

JULIE HALLIGAN CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION CONSUMER PROTECTION AND SAFETY DIVISION COMMUNICATIONS POLICY BRANCH ROOM 2203 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

NATALIE WALES CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION LEGAL DIVISION ROOM 5141 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

PEJMAN MOSHFEGH CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION UTILITY & PAYPHONE ENFORCEMENT AREA 2-E 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

SCOTT MOSBAUGH CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION EXECUTIVE DIVISION ROOM 5207 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

STEPHEN BAKKEN CALIFORNIA STATE PARKS 1416 9TH STREET SACRAMENTO, CA 95814

320 WEST 4TH STREET SUITE 500 LOS ANGELES, CA 90013

CHRISTOPHER MYERS CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS POLICY BRANCH ROOM 4209 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214 FOR: DRA

ED MOLDAVSKY CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION LEGAL DIVISION ROOM 5037 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

HARVEY Y. MORRIS CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION LEGAL DIVISION ROOM 5036 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

MICHAEL GREER CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION ROOM 4211 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

PAUL S. PHILLIPS CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION EXECUTIVE DIVISION ROOM 5212 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

ROBERT ELLIOTT CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION ENERGY DIVISION AREA 4-A 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

TIMOTHY KENNEY CALIF PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES ROOM 5015 505 VAN NESS AVENUE SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3214

TOP OF PAGE BACK TO INDEX OF SERVICE LISTS